
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 1, 2020 
 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – JUNE 1, 2020 

 
Board Room                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuant to the Russell County Emergency 
Ordinance of April 6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the Pandemic, including Altering 
the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers 
to the Director of Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and 
Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters  
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 

1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance 
 

2. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing 
 

3. Honaker School Property Transfer Public Hearing 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 1, 2020 
 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 
 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of May 4, 2020 
 

b. Unapproved minutes of May 20, 2020 
       

Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented                                  
for payment………………………….…..………………………………………………….……A-2 

 
2. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 

 
Regional Industrial Authority 
 
David Eaton                      Two-Year Term         April 18, 2020 
Ernie McFaddin                Two-Year Term         April 18, 2020 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton                    One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Ben Price (Vacant)           One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Ron Blankenship             One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Jim Eaton                         One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
 
Russell County Public Library  
 
Yvonne Dye                      Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
Susan Breeding               Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 
Russell County Public Service Authority  
 

  Cuba Porter                       Four-Year Term        June 24, 2020 
  David Edmonds Jr.           Four-Year Term        June 24, 2020 
            Terry Powers                    Vacancy       June 24, 2022 
 
  Spearhead Trails 
 
  Terry Clevenger                Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 1, 2020 
 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 
 

 
   Appalachian Agency for Senior Citizens 
 
  Larry Burton                                Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
  Alice Meade              Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
   Wayne Bostic                               Two-Year Term         June 30, 2020 
            Pat Gray                                       Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
 

Tourism Advisory Committee 
 

 Brandon Blevins (Resigned)       Four-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 Jason Gullett (Resigned)             Four-Year Term       June 30, 2020 

 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD 
 

• Board of Supervisor’s Lobby. 
 
Due to Coronavirus (COVID-19) - Citizen Comment Period will be guided by Executive Order Fifty-Three 
Restrictions issued on March 23, 2020 concerning community spread and person-to-person interactions 
will be limited to the Ten (10) Person Only Ban though Video/Audio/ Electronic Methods and limited to 3 
minutes per person. 

 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Russell County COVID-19 Reopening Resolution…………………………………B-1 
 

2. CPWMA User Agreement……………………………………………………………….B-2   
 

3. Personnel Policy Update……………………………………………………………….B-3 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 
1. CDBG Planning Grant – Cleveland Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade…….……C-1 

 
2. Russell County Emergency Operation Plan………………………………………..C-2 

 
3. Town of Lebanon Abstract of Votes…………………………………………………C-3 

 
REQUESTS 

  
4. VRA Amended and Restated Support Agreement of the Southwest Virginia  

Regional Jail Authority and Russell County………………………………………..C-4 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         June 1, 2020 
 
 

Russell County Page 4 
 
 

 
5. VRA Certificate of the County of Russell Virginia………………………..……….C-5 

 
6. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing…………………C-6 

 
7. RC Planning Commission Plats……………………….……………………………...C-7 

 
MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..H 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………I 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….J 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...K 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..M 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….N 
• CPWMA Report…………………………………………………………………………..O   

 



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A) (1), (7), (8). 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 6/1/20     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 
1. Continuity of Government Emergency Ordinance 

 
2. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing 

 
3. Honaker School Property Transfer Public Hearing 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuit to the Russell County 
Emergency Ordinance of April 6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public 
Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of Emergency Management to Incur 
Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on the Continuity of 
Government Emergency Ordinance will be held on June 1, 2020, in the 
Russell County Governmental Center, Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Room, 133 Highlands Drive, Lebanon, Virginia, beginning at 6 p.m. 
 
A copy of the ordinance is available for public review in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office, 137 Highlands Drive, during normal business hours 
Monday through Friday.   
 
Individuals with disabilities who require special assistance to attend and 
participate in this meeting should contact Lonzo Lester at (276) 889-
8000 by 4:30 P.M., June 1, 2020 so arrangements can be made. 

 
BY ORDER OF THE 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 



Emergency Ordinance to Allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the 
Use of Public Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of 
Emergency Management to Incur Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary 
Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures  
 

 WHEREAS, on January 31, 2020, the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services 
declared a public health emergency in response to the spread of the novel coronavirus (COVID-
19); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 12, 2020, the Governor, in Executive Order Fifty-One, declared a 
state of emergency in the Commonwealth of Virginia, acknowledging the spread of COVID-19 as 
a disaster as defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Executive Order Fifty-One authorized local governments to render 
appropriate assistance and to alleviate conditions, as appropriate, to prepare for and mitigate the 
effects of the virus; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States found and declared the 
outbreak of COVID-19 to constitute a national emergency, beginning March 1, 2020; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on March 17 and 23, the Governor requested and then directed Virginians to 
avoid non-essential gatherings of more than 10 people; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors held a special called meeting on 
March 17, 2020 Board determined that COVID-19 constituted a “disaster” as contemplated in 
section 15.2-1413 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended and pursuant to Virginia Code § 
44-146.21, declared a local state of emergency in Russell County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors has determined that COVID-19 constitutes a 
communicable disease of public health threat which has caused a disaster as those terms are 
defined in Virginia Code § 44-146.16; and  
 
 WHEREAS, while the Board of Supervisors values transparency in government and 
public engagement, it also finds that emergency measures are necessary to mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19 and to protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees, while still 
providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1413 provides that the Board of Supervisors, 
notwithstanding any contrary provision of law, may adopt an ordinance to assure the continuity of 
government operations during this disaster and for up to six months; and. 
 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 44-146.21 further provides that a local director of 
emergency management or any member of a governing body in his absence may upon the 
declaration of a local emergency proceed without regard to time-consuming procedures and 
formalities prescribed by law, except for mandatory constitutional requirements; and  



 
 WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 15.2-1200 provides the county with authority to adopt 
necessary regulations to prevent the spread of contagious diseases among its residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors also has the inherent authority to vary the county’s 
policies, procedures, and practices to assure the continuity of government operations; and 
 

WHEREAS, government operations includes the work of the Board of Supervisors and 
other local public bodies, and the personnel who work for or on behalf of local public bodies; and 

 
WHEREAS, Virginia Code § 2.2-3708.2(A)(3) allows, under certain procedural 

requirements including public notice and access, that members of the Board of Superviosrs may 
convene solely by electronic mean “to address the emergency;” And 

 
WHEREAS, the open public meeting requirements of the Virginia Freedom of 

Information Act (“FOIA”) are limited only by a properly claimed exemption provided under that 
Act or “any other statute;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the Attorney General of Virginia issued an opinion dated March 20, 2020 

stating that localities have the authority during disasters to adopt ordinances to ensure the 
continuity of the government; and 

 
WHEREAS, this emergency ordinance in response to the disaster caused by the COVID-

19 pandemic promotes the public health, safety, and welfare, and its adoption is consistent with 
the law of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the Virginia Constitution and the United States 
Constitution. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that this uncodified ordinance is hereby 
enacted as follows: 
 
An Emergency Ordinance Allowing for the Continuity of Government Operations During 
the Pandemic 
 
Sec. 1.  Purpose; Effective Date; Expiration 
 
 This ordinance allows for variances from state laws and county ordinances in order to 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of residents and employees from the spread of COVID-19 
while still providing for government operations to continue during this state of emergency. 
 

The operation of government includes management of all county facilities, management of 
the school system, and the work of all local boards, including the Board of Supervisors, the Russell 
County School Board, the Russell County Industrial Development Authority, the Russell County 
Public Service Authority, the Russell County Department of Social Services, and any other local 
or regional board, commission, committee, or authority created by the board of supervisors or to 
which the board of supervisors appoints or recommends for appointment all or a portion of its 
members (collectively “Public Bodies” and individually “Public Body”), including employees 



who work for or on behalf of any Public Body.  Accordingly, the provisions of this emergency 
ordinance applies to all such “Public Bodies”. 
 

At this time, public health experts recommend against assembling groups of people in 
confined spaces. Accordingly, this ordinance contains modifications for public meetings which 
should be followed while it is deemed unwise or unsafe to gather in one location a quorum for any 
Public Bodies, or to invite members of the public to physically gather together for public meetings.   

 
 Moreover, the spread of COVID-19 may make it impossible or impractical for government 
operations to meet all normally imposed deadlines, regulations, and time frames, or to comport, in 
some instances, with lengthy procedures and processes such as procurement or employment 
processes.  
 
 This emergency ordinance is effective immediately and will remain in effect for 60 days 
unless amended, rescinded, or readopted in conformity with the notice provisions of Virginia Code 
§ 15.2-1427; however, in no event will the ordinance be effective for more than six months from 
the effective date of this ordinance. At the end of the six months, if a state of emergency still exists 
then this ordinance may be renewed the same way it was originally enacted. Upon repeal or 
expiration of this ordinance, normal government operations will resume.  
 
Sec. 2.  Public Meetings and Public Hearings 
 
A. Any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may be canceled by the 
chair if there is no essential business that needs to occur or if conditions otherwise make it 
impractical to meet. Notice of the cancellation must be provided to the Public Body members and 
the public as soon as practicable.   
 
B. In the alternative, any regularly scheduled or regular meeting of any Public Body may  
be held by solely electronic or telephonic means without a quorum of members physically present 
and without members of the public physically present, provided the following occurs: 
 
 1)  Any such electronic meeting of the Public Entities shall be open to electronic 
participation by the public and closed to in-person participation by the public. The meeting is 
accessible to the public through live audio or video on the County’s or Public Body’s website, a 
dial-in telephone number, or a social media platform. 
 
 2) The agenda and public notice for the meeting must: 

a) include a statement that the meeting is being held using electronic means under this 
ordinance; 

b) contain specific information about how members of the public can access the 
meeting; and  

c) if there are any public hearing or public comment items, specifically identify how 
members of the public can provide comment, including one or more of the 
following: by e-mail, in writing, by telephone, through a social media platform, or 
via other electronic means. 
 



 
 3) The agenda is posted on the County’s or Public Body’s website at least three days prior 
to the meeting.  Other materials associated with the meeting, if any, must be made available to the 
public at the same time they are provided to the Public Body members. 
 
 4) For public hearings and any items for which public comment is permitted, the following 
rules apply: 

a) Normal rules of order apply with respect to requiring the name and home address 
of the commenter, that comments relate to the hearing or comment topic, that 
appropriate limits on the number of comments per person per item apply, and that 
comments be of reasonable length. 

b) Public Bodies may allow public comments to be submitted via phone call, e-mail, 
or in writing, up until a reasonable time before the start of the meeting so long as 
those comments are provided to the Public Body members prior to any decision on 
an item.  

c) If available, members of the public may provide comments through leaving a 
voicemail on a dedicated phone number up until a reasonable time before the start 
of the meeting so long as those comments are then provided to the Public Body 
members prior to any decision on an item. 

d) If available, members of the public may provide comments through telephonic or 
interactive electronic means (call-in meeting access, social media platform) during 
the meeting so long as those comments are received by or provided to the Public 
Body members prior to any decision on an item. 

e) The Public Body may choose to receive additional comments through any means 
for a period of time after the public hearing or public meeting, so long as it 
announces and publicizes that opportunity and those comments are provided to the 
Public Body members prior to any decision on an item.  

f) All public comments must be made a part of the record of the Public Body either by 
being summarized in or included with the meeting minutes. 
 

 5) Any votes taken during the meeting must be taken by roll call, individually recording 
each member’s name and vote. 
 
 6) The minutes of any meeting under this ordinance must conform to the requirements of 
law, including identifying the forms of electronic communication used, the members participating 
and the means by which they participated, the opportunities for public access or participation, a 
summary of the public comments, if any, and the actions taken at the meeting. The Public Entities 
may approve minutes of an electronic meeting at a subsequent electronic meeting and shall later 
approve all such minutes at a regular or special meeting after the emergency and disaster has ended. 
 
C. Public Bodies may hold special meetings consistent with the provisions in (B) except that 
notice of the special meeting need only be provided at least three working days prior to the meeting, 
and the agenda and associated materials, if any, need to be made available to the public at the same 
time as they are made available to the Public Body members. 
 
 



 
D. Public Bodies may hold emergency meetings consistent with Virginia Code § 2.2-3708. 
 
E. Any item on an agenda for a regularly scheduled, regular, special, or emergency meeting 
held hereunder may be continued to a later date or time for the purpose of reviewing and 
considering comments from the public. 
 
F. Non-emergency public hearings and action items of Public Bodies may be postponed to a 
date certain provided that public notice is given so that the public are aware of how and when to 
present their views. 
 
G. Nothing in this Emergency Ordinance shall prohibit Public Bodies from holding in-
person public meetings provided that public health and safety measures as well as social 
distancing are taken into consideration. 
 
Sec. 3.  Public Buildings, Facilities, Real Property and Events 
 

The director of emergency management is empowered to restrict members of the public 
from entering or congregating around county-owned buildings, facilities, and real property as is 
reasonably necessary to ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the public or county staff. 
Moreover, the director of emergency management may cancel, postpone, or reschedule any events 
scheduled for any county-owned building, facility or property as necessary to ensure the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public or county staff.  

 
Sec. 4.  Additional powers of director of emergency management 
 
A. Funding and Contracts. To the extent of unobligated funds available in excess of 
appropriations in the approved budget, the director of emergency management may enter into 
contracts and incur obligations necessary to protect the health and safety of persons and property, 
and to provide emergency assistance to persons affected by this disaster. 

 
B. Procedures. The director of emergency management may proceed without regard to time-
consuming procedures and formalities prescribed by law (except mandatory constitutional 
requirements) pertaining to the performance of public work, entering into contracts, incurring 
obligations, employing workers, renting equipment, purchasing supplies and materials, and other 
expenditures of public funds. 

 
C. Other Temporary Actions. The director of emergency management may temporarily take 
any of the following actions: waive or reduce fees imposed by county ordinance; waive 
enforcement, in whole or in part, of any county ordinance; and modify, limit, waive, suspend, or 
amend any county program, service, function, process, or procedure. The director must apply the 
action uniformly for similar situations and not on a case-by-case basis. The director’s actions will 
only be effective until the next regular meeting of the board of supervisors. The board of 
supervisors may ratify and extend the time for which the director’s action remains in effect. 
 
 
 



 
Sec. 5.  Suspension of Deadlines, Time Frames, and Procedures 
 

County personnel are encouraged to take action as is practical and appropriate to meet 
deadlines or time frames established under state law or county ordinances, however, 
notwithstanding any provision of law, regulation, or policy to the contrary, any deadlines requiring 
action by the county, any Public Body, or county employees are suspended. Time frames for 
review or expedited reviews are also suspended. Failure to meet any deadline or time frame will 
not constitute a default, violation, approval, ratification, or recommendation. Any policies or 
procedures inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby suspended. 
 
Sec. 6 Adoption by Incorporated Towns within the Boundaries of Russell County 

 
Each incorporated town within the boundaries of Russell County are encouraged, 

authorized and/or directed to declare its own state of local emergency and disaster or incorporate 
by reference the County’s local state of emergency and disaster and to adopt an ordinance for the 
continuity of town government.  
 
Sec. 7 Validity and Duration of Ordinance and Resumption of Normal Governmental 
Authority 
 

The provisions herein are presumptively valid, however in the event that any provision of 
this ordinance is declared to be invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction all remaining 
provisions shall not be invalidated and remain in full force and effect. The provisions of this 
Emergency Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect for a period of 60 days, unless amended, 
rescinded or readopted by the Russell County Board of Supervisors in conformity with the notice 
provisions set forth in Virginia Code §15.2-1427 but in no event shall such ordinance be effective 
for more than 6 months after the conclusion of the disaster.  Upon rescission by the Russell 
County Board of Supervisors or automatic expiration as described herein, this emergency 
ordinance shall terminate and normal practices and procedures of government shall resume. 
  
2. This ordinance shall be effective upon adoption. 
 

ADOPTED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

        APPROVED 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Rebecca Dye 
        Chairperson    
  
 
 
 
                    



ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Lonzo Lester 
County Administrator 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
M. Katherine Patton 
County Attorney 
 
 

 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuit to the Russell County 
Emergency Ordinance of April 6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public 
Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of Emergency Management to Incur 
Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on the Proposed FY 2020/ 
2021 County Budget, School Board Budget, and the proposed CY 2020 
Tax Levies and Tax Dates required to fund the Budgets will be held on 
June 1, 2020, in the Russell County Governmental Center, Board of 
Supervisors Meeting Room, 133 Highlands Drive, Lebanon, Virginia, 
beginning at 6 p.m. 
 
A copy of the proposed budget is available for public review in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office, 137 Highlands Drive, during normal 
business hours Monday through Friday.  In addition, the FY 2020/2021 
County Budget is posted on the County’s Website at  
http://www.russellcountyva.us/154/Budget-Finance and 
RussellCountyVA App on Google Play Store. 
 
Individuals with disabilities who require special assistance to attend and 
participate in this meeting should contact Lonzo Lester at (276) 889-
8000 by 4:30 P.M., June 1, 2020 so arrangements can be made. 

 
BY ORDER OF THE 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/154/Budget-Finance


 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian  Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

   

    

    

  

The Russell County Board of Supervisors Meetings will be held pursuit to the Russell County 
Emergency Ordinance of April 6, 2020 to allow for the Continuity of Government Operations During the 
Pandemic, including Altering the Process for Conducting Public Meetings; Restricting the Use of Public 
Buildings or Facilities; Providing Additional Powers to the Director of Emergency Management to Incur 
Costs, Waive Procedures, and Take Other Temporary Actions; and Suspending Deadlines and Procedures.  
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on the Honaker School 
Property Transfer Public Hearing will be held on June 1, 2020, in the 
Russell County Governmental Center, Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Room, 133 Highlands Drive, Lebanon, Virginia, beginning at 6 p.m. 
 
Details of the property are available for public review in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office, 137 Highlands Drive, during normal business hours 
Monday through Friday.   
 
Individuals with disabilities who require special assistance to attend and 
participate in this meeting should contact Lonzo Lester at (276) 889-
8000 by 4:30 P.M., June 1, 2020 so arrangements can be made. 

 
BY ORDER OF THE 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 6/1/20       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of May 4, 2020 
• Unapproved minutes of May 20, 2020 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 04, 2020 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, May 04, 
2020 beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm 
at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
None 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Section 2.2-3712(5) of the Code of Virginia to discuss 
personnel and legal matters pursuant to 2.2-3711(A), (1), (7) and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:   Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Invocation by Chairperson Rebecca Dye followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 



 
The vote was: 
Aye: Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay: None 

 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE 2020/2021 GENERAL OPERATING BUDGET 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the 2020/2021 General Operation Budget. 

The Chairperson opened the public hearing.  Hearing no comments, the public hearing was closed. 

New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 06, 2020 MINUTES 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the April 06, 2020 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the April 28, 2020 and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,386,884.14, including withholdings and 
reoccurring. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened public comment. 
 
Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL stated that she was concerned about the upcoming budget and potential 
cuts due to the COVID 19 epidemic. 



The Chair closed Citizens Comment period. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney advised the Board to hold a public hearing on the Continuation of 
Government Ordinance. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON THE CONTINUATION OF GOVERNMENT ORDIANCE 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to hold a 
public hearing on the Continuation of Government Ordinance on June 01, 2020 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The County Attorney stated that she had reviewed the written contract for Courthouse Project 
Management Services.  She asked that the Board approve the contract since she had made a minor 
change. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE COURTHOUSE PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Courthouse Project Management Services written contract after review by the County 
Attorney to reflect a minor change. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A CDGB GRANT FOR THE CLEVELAND SEWER TREATMENT PLANT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Community Development Block Grant through the Department of Housing and Community 
Development for the Cleveland Sewer Treatment Plant pending final legal review. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  Lou Wallace 
 
APPROVAL OF CDAC OF VIRGINIA TECH LETTER OF CONFIRMATION FOR A BROWNSFIELD GRANT 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a letter of confirmation from the Community Design Assistance Center (CDAC) of Virginia Tech 
for a U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Brownfields Assessment grant.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 



Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE RUSSELL AND WASHINGTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF DEPARTMENTS 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a mutual aid agreement between Russell and Washington County Sheriff’s Department for law 
enforcement services from 2020-2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL OF A MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE RUSSELL AND BUCHANAN COUNTY SHERIFF  

DEPARTMENTS 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a mutual aid agreement between Russell County and Buchanan County Sheriff’s Department 
for law enforcement services for 2020-2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A LEBANON HIGH SCHOOL WALL REPAIR CONTRACT 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Lebanon High School wall repair contract with Ken’s Construction and D. R. Price Engineering 
firm based on legal review.  
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON THE TRANSFER OF HONAKER SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on the transfer of Honaker school property on June 01, 2020. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 



The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
__________________________                                                      ___________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



May 20, 2020 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Wednesday, May 
20,2020 at 10:00 am at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
Invocation by Chairperson Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 

CERTIFICATION FOR RECEIPT OF CORONOVIRUS RELIEF FUND PAYMENTS 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Certification for Receipt of Coronavirus Relief Fund Payments.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 



 
 
Budget Workshop 
 
The County Administrator explained how the budget could be impacted due to the COVID-19 pandemic.   
 
The Board discussed the upcoming budget with input from the Commissioner of the Revenue, Randy 
Williams and Treasurer Alicia McGlothlin.  They both were concerned about how a reduction in state 
funding cause a budget shortfall.  
 
 The Commissioner asked that the Board work with local businesses to make sure they are able to stay 
open.  He stated that the DMV Select had been very busy as they are one of the only offices open in the 
area. 
 
The Treasurer stated that collections were on track with projections at present.   She also commented 
that we should be responsible with Cares Act funds as this is just a “band aid” and will not be a long-
term solution. 
 
The health insurance fund was also discussed. 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly appointed by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                                 ____________________________ 
Clerk of The Board                                                                                    Chairperson 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

       Meeting: 6/1/20      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s May 2020 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s May 2020 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s May 2020 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Mayl 2020 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 
Board of Supervisors      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 6/1/20        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
Regional Industrial Authority 
 
David Eaton                      Two-Year Term         April 18, 2020 
Ernie McFaddin                Two-Year Term         April 18, 2020 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton                    One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Ben Price (Vacant)           One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Ron Blankenship             One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
Jim Eaton                         One-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
 
Russell County Public Library  
 
Yvonne Dye                      Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
Susan Breeding               Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 
Russell County Public Service Authority  
 

  Cuba Porter                       Four-Year Term        June 24, 2020 
  David Edmonds Jr.           Four-Year Term        June 24, 2020 
            Terry Powers                      Vacant                       June 24, 2022 
 
  Spearhead Trails 
 
  Terry Clevenger                Three-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 
   Appalachian Agency for Senior Citizens 
 
  Larry Burton                     Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
  Alice Meade           Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
   Wayne Bostic                    Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
             Pat Gray                            Two-Year Term          June 30, 2020 
 

Tourism Advisory Committee 
 

 Brandon Blevins (Resigned)     Four-Year Term       June 30, 2020 
 Jason Gullett (Resigned)           Four-Year Term       June 30, 2020 

 
Staff Recommendation:  
Board Discretion. 



































                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 6/1/20        6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
 

1. Russell County COVID-19 Reopening Resolution…………………………………B-1 
 

2. CPWMA User Agreement……………………………………………………………….B-2   
 

3. Personnel Policy Update……………………………………………………………….B-3 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Oris Christian   Carl Rhea 
At-Large  District 3  
 
Tim Lovelace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson David Eaton 
District 1 District 6 District 4 
  
Lou Ann Wallace Steve Breeding, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 2 District 5 County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

    

    

    

  

                                                   
RESOLUTION 

 
REQUESTING AN EXPEDITED REOPENING 

OF RUSSELL COUNTY AND SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA 
 

WHEREAS, Executive Order No. 53 and Executive Order No. 55 were enacted 

by the Governor of Virginia to limit the growth and devastating effects of COVID-19. 

WHEREAS, Executive Order No. 61 has been enacted for a Phased state 

reopening to commence May 15, 2020; 

WHEREAS, small businesses throughout Southwest Virginia, including those in 

Russell County are disproportionately affected by Executive Order No. 53 and 

Executive Order No. 55, which has caused a devastating regional unemployment rate 

and Executive Order 61 continues to inequitably impact our region by a nearly statewide 

phasing metric; 

WHEREAS, neighboring states such as Tennessee and North Carolina, with 

demographics similar to Southwest Virginia, have opened or begun to reopen in a more 

expedited manner with continued heightened awareness and sanitation practices and 

regulations; 

WHEREAS, a failure to likewise reopen Russell County and Southwest Virginia 

both limits the recovery of businesses due to earlier reopening in neighboring states,  

 



 

 

and places residents of Russell County and Southwest Virginia at risk by travelling out 

of the area to patronize businesses in other states that have reopened. 

WHEREAS, Russell County, Virginia has approximately 26,600 residents, of 

which only 8 have tested positive for COVID-19 and no COVID-19 cases currently 

active; and    

WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors is confident that Russell 

County and Southwest Virginia businesses can reopen in a safe and sanitary manner, 

following federal and state health and safety guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors trusts the citizens of 

Russell County to be personally responsible in practicing preventative measures, such 

as social distancing and good hygiene, in the process of reopening of Russell County 

and Southwest Virginia. 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Russell County Board of Supervisors hereby 

respectfully requests that the Governor of Virginia to consider modifying the reopening 

of the Commonwealth of Virginia from a state-wide basis to a local/regional basis 

utilizing the phased approach outlined by the Governor of Virginia but allowing Russell 

County and Southwest Virginia to utilizes a flexible and expedited re-opening process 

when certain metrics are met locally or regionally.  The Russell County Board of 

Supervisors further requests that such a flexible and expedited local/regional reopening 

occur for Russell County and Southwest Virginia effective immediately, in which Russell 

County and Southwest Virginia would have the flexibility to enter Phase III of reopening 

immediately. 

 



 

FURTHER, the Russell County Board of Supervisors directs that the Clerk of the 

Board of Supervisors forward a copy of this Resolution to the following:  Virginia House 

of Delegates; Virginia Senate; and Ralph S. Northam – Governor of Virginia. This 

resolution was adopted this the 1st day of June 2020 by the Russell County, Va., Board 

of Supervisors.   

 

Recorded Vote:                                   ____________________________________  
Moved by:____________                   Rebecca Dye, Chairperson   
Seconded by:___________                 Board of Supervisors   
Yeas:____________      County of Russell 
Nays: ___________ 
 
 

                              ATTEST: 
 
                                                                 _____________________________________ 
                                                                  Lonzo Lester, County Administrator                                                         

 

 









 

Board of Supervisors Action Item C-1 – C-7 
   137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 

Lebanon, VA 24266 

                   Meeting: 6/1/20         6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for June 2020: 

 
REPORTS 
 
1. CDBG Planning Grant – Cleveland Sewer Treatment Plant Upgrade…….……C-1 

 
2. Russell County Emergency Operation Plan………………………………………..C-2 

 
3. Town of Lebanon Abstract of Votes…………………………………………………C-3 

 
REQUESTS 

  
4. VRA Amended and Restated Support Agreement of the Southwest Virginia  

            Regional Jail Authority and Russell County………………………………………..C-4 
 

5. VRA Certificate of the County of Russell Virginia………………………..……….C-5 
 

6. Russell County Fiscal-Year 2020/2021 Budget Public Hearing…………………C-6 
 

7. RC Planning Commission Plats……………………….……………………………...C-7 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


 

 

May 20, 2020 

 

Mr. Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

Russell County 

137 Highland Dr. 

Lebanon, VA 24266-7169     

RE: 2020 CDBG Planning Grant-Approval 

 

Dear Mr. Lester: 

 

We have reviewed the County’s request for CDBG planning assistance for the Russell County Cleveland 

Regional Sewer System PER Project. We are prepared to offer planning grant assistance for developing 

this project. Our review of these items indicates that the County and the stakeholders have demonstrated 

an acceptable preliminary level of interest and need in developing plans for the proposed project. DHCD 

will make a total of up to $60,000 available to the County for developing solutions for the identified long-

term sewage system community needs. 

 

Joe Blevins, Program Manager in the Community Development Division, has been assigned to work with 

you to continue the planning efforts and to assist you in conducting a Facilitated Planning Strategy 

meeting.  The result of this meeting will be a work plan and budget that will be included in the proposal 

for planning grant funds to be submitted to DHCD.  Mr. Blevins will be in touch with you shortly or can 

be reached at (276) 274-4539.   

    

In summary, the next steps in this process are: 

 

1. The County must abide by the Virginia Public Procurement Act and may not execute contracts 

that will obligate CDBG funds until these contracts have been reviewed by DHCD. 

2. DHCD’s staff person will meet with the County and stakeholders and hold a Facilitated Planning 

Strategy session to develop a work-plan that will encompass a discussion of all activities that 

need to be completed and by when they will be completed. 

3. Within seven (7) working days of the Facilitated Planning Strategy the County must submit a 

Planning Grant proposal to DHCD that includes the work plan and cost of completing the 

activities. 

4. Upon receipt, DHCD will evaluate the proposal and, if determined to be necessary, set-up a 

Contract Negotiation Meeting with the County and a contract will be issued within one week of 

the Contract Negotiation Meeting. 

5. Please note that requests must be submitted electronically through the Agency’s Centralized 

Application and Management System (CAMS).  To access CAMS, visit the website at 

www.dhcd.virginia.gov and click on the CAMS icon in the upper-right hand corner.  You may 

submit your proposal information utilizing the reports and communications tab with the project. 

http://www.dhcd.virginia.gov/


Mr. Lonzo Lester 
May 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

  

For additional information, please contact Rachel Jordan, Policy Analyst at (804) 371-7076.   

 

Sincerely, 

       

       
 

 

      Matt Weaver 

      Associate Director 

 

c:    Jim Baldwin, Cumberland Plateau PDC 

 Joe Blevins, DHCD       

 







 
AMENDED AND RESTATED SUPPORT AGREEMENT 

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY AND RUSSELL COUNTY 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED SUPPORT AGREEMENT (this “Support 
Agreement”) is made as of June 1, 2020, among the COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
(the “County”), SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY (the “Jail 
Authority”), and the VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY (“VRA”), as purchaser of the 
Local Bond, as hereinafter defined, pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2013 
(the "Indenture"), between the Jail Authority and REGIONS BANK, as Trustee, and a Local 
Bond Sale and Financing Agreement dated as of April 14, 2020 (the “Local Bond Sale and 
Financing Agreement”), between VRA and the Jail Authority. 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the Jail Authority is a regional jail authority pursuant to Section 53.1-95.2 
et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and a public instrumentality of the Commonwealth 
of Virginia by resolutions duly adopted by the governing bodies of the Counties of Buchanan, 
Dickenson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Smyth, Tazewell, Washington and Wise, Virginia and the City of 
Norton, Virginia (collectively, the “Member Jurisdictions”) for the purpose of developing 
regional jail facilities (collectively, the “Regional Jail”) to be operated on behalf of the Member 
Jurisdictions by the Authority; 

WHEREAS, the Jail Authority has determined that it is in its best interest to issue and 
sell its Jail Facilities Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2020 in an original aggregate principal 
amount of $37,880,000 (the “Local Bond”) to VRA pursuant to the terms of the Local Bond 
Sale and Financing Agreement to finance the refunding, redemption and defeasance of all or a 
portion of the Authority's outstanding $65,955,000 Jail Facilities Revenue and Refunding Bond, 
Series 2013 (the “2013 Bond”) issued to finance and refinance the costs of constructing, 
renovating and improving the Regional Jail; 

 WHEREAS, VRA requires each Member Jurisdiction, as a condition to the purchase by 
VRA of the Local Bond, to enter into a Support Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance by the Jail Authority and the purchase by 
VRA of the Local Bond, the Board of Supervisors of the County (the "Board") adopted on 
March 2, 2020, a resolution authorizing, among other things, the execution and delivery of an 
agreement providing for a non-binding obligation of the Board to consider certain appropriations 
in support of the Local Bond. 

WHEREAS, the Board, the Authority and VRA wish to enter into this Amended and 
Restated Support Agreement to reflect the refunding of the 2013 Bond and the issuance and sale 
of the Local Bond. 

 

 



AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual 
covenants herein set forth, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. Unless otherwise defined, each capitalized term used in this Support Agreement 
shall have the meaning given it in the Local Bond Sale and Financing Agreement. 

2. The Jail Authority shall use its best efforts to issue the Local Bond, and to use the 
proceeds thereof to pay the costs of refunding the 2013 Bond and refinancing the Regional Jail. 

3. No later than May 15 of each year, beginning May 15, 2021, the Jail Authority 
shall notify the County of the County's share (the “Annual Deficiency Amount”), pursuant to 
the Service Agreement, of the amount by which the Jail Authority reasonably expects the 
Revenues to be insufficient to pay (i) the debt service obligations under the Local Bond Sale and 
Financing Agreement and the Local Bond and any unrefunded debt service due on the 2013 
Bond, if any, (ii) the Operation and Maintenance Expenses, and (iii) any other payments due and 
owing by the Jail Authority under the Local Bond Sale and Financing Agreement in full as and 
when due during the County's fiscal year beginning the following July 1. 

4. The County Administrator of the County (the “County Administrator”) shall 
include the Annual Deficiency Amount in his budget submitted to the Board for the following 
fiscal year as an amount to be appropriated to or on behalf of the Jail Authority.  The County 
Administrator shall deliver to VRA within ten days after the adoption of the County's budget for 
each fiscal year, but not later than July 15 of each year, a certificate stating whether the Board 
has appropriated to or on behalf of the Jail Authority an amount equal to the Annual Deficiency 
Amount. 

5. If at any time Revenues shall be insufficient to make any of the payments referred 
to in paragraph 3 hereof, the Jail Authority shall notify the County of the amount of such 
insufficiency and the County Administrator shall request a supplemental appropriation from the 
Board in the amount necessary to make such payment. 

6. The County Administrator shall present each request for appropriation pursuant to 
paragraph 5 above to the Board, and the Board shall consider such request at the Board's next 
regularly scheduled meeting at which it is possible to satisfy any applicable notification 
requirement.  Promptly after such meeting, the County Administrator shall notify VRA as to 
whether the amount so requested was appropriated.  If the Board shall fail to make any such 
appropriation, the County Administrator shall add the amount of such requested appropriation to 
the Annual Deficiency Amount reported to the County by the County Administrator for the 
County's next fiscal year. 

7. The Board hereby undertakes a non-binding obligation to appropriate such 
amounts as may be requested from time to time pursuant to paragraphs 4 and 5 above, to the 
fullest degree and in such manner as is consistent with the Constitution and laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia.  The Board, while recognizing that it is not empowered to make any 
binding commitment to make such appropriations in future fiscal years, hereby states its intent to 



make such appropriations in future fiscal years, and hereby recommends that future Boards of 
Supervisors do likewise. 

8. The County acknowledges and agrees that (i) VRA would not purchase the Local 
Bond without the security and credit enhancement provided by this Support Agreement, (ii) 
VRA will be an express, intended third party beneficiary of the Service Agreement and (iii) VRA 
is treating this Support Agreement as a “local obligation” within the meaning of Section 62.1-
199 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, including amendments thereto taking effect as 
of July 1, 2011 (the “Virginia Code”), which in the event of a nonpayment hereunder authorizes 
VRA or the Trustee to file an affidavit with the Governor that such nonpayment has occurred 
pursuant to Section 62.1-216.1 of the Virginia Code.  In purchasing the Local Bond, VRA is 
further relying on Section 62.1-216.1 of the Virginia Code, providing that if the Governor is 
satisfied that the nonpayment has occurred, the Governor will immediately make an order 
directing the Comptroller to withhold all further payment to the County of all funds, or of any 
part of them, appropriated and payable by the Commonwealth of Virginia to the County for any 
and all purposes, and the Governor will, while the nonpayment continues, direct in writing the 
payment of all sums withheld by the Comptroller, or as much of them as is necessary, to VRA, 
so as to cure, or cure insofar as possible, such nonpayment. 

9. Nothing herein contained is or shall be deemed to be a lending of the credit of the 
County to the Jail Authority, VRA or to any holder of the Local Bond or to any other person, and 
nothing herein contained is or shall be deemed to be a pledge of the faith and credit or the taxing 
power of the County, nor shall anything herein contained legally bind or obligate the Board to 
appropriate funds for the purposes described herein. 

10. Any notices or requests required to be given hereunder shall be deemed given if 
sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed (i) if to the County, to 137 
Highland Drive, Lebanon, VA, 24266 Attention: County Administrator, (ii) if to the Jail 
Authority, to 16325 Taylor Place, Suite 400, Abingdon, Virginia 24211, Attention: 
Administrator, and (iii) if to VRA, to 1111 East Main Street, Suite 1920, Richmond, Virginia 
23219, Attention:  Executive Director.  Any party may designate any other address for notices or 
requests by giving notice. 

11. It is the intent of the parties hereto that this Support Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

12. This Support Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the Local Bond 
and all other amounts payable by Jail Authority under the Local Bond Sale and Financing 
Agreement have been paid in full. 

13. This Support Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have each caused this Support Agreement 
to be executed in their respective names as of the date first above written. 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

By: _____________________________________ 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 

SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA REGIONAL JAIL 
AUTHORITY 

By: _____________________________________ 
Chairman 

VIRGINIA RESOURCES AUTHORITY 

By: _____________________________________ 
Executive Director 

 
 
 



1 
 

CERTIFICATE OF THE 
COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 

 
The undersigned Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Russell, 

Virginia (the “Governing Body”) and the County Administrator of the County of Russell, 
Virginia (the “Member Jurisdiction”), certify the following: 

1. A meeting of the Governing Body was held on April 2, 2001, at which meeting the 
following duly elected members were present and absent: 

 
 PRESENT: Frank W. Horton 
   Danny L. Brown 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples, Jr. 
   Clarence Ball 
   Carter McGlothlin 

 
  ABSENT: None 
 
  being all of the members of the Governing Body on the date of such meeting. 
 

2. A resolution (the “Authorizing Resolution”) creating the Southwest Virginia 
Regional Jail Authority (the “Authority”) was adopted by a majority of the members 
of the Governing Body by the following roll call vote, as recorded in the minutes of 
such meeting as follows: 

 
 AYES: Frank W. Horton 
   Danny L. Brown 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples, Jr. 
   Clarence Ball 
   Carter McGlothlin 

 
  NAYS: None 
 

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true, complete, and correct copy of such 
Authorizing Resolution as recorded in the Minutes of such meeting. 

 
4. Such Authorizing Resolution has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded, or amended 

but is in full force and effect on this date. 
 

5. Steven L. Dye, as the Sheriff of Russell County, Virginia, serves as a member of the 
Authority from the Member Jurisdiction.  The Governing Body has appointed Oris 
Christian and Tim Lovelace to act as the Member Jurisdiction’s other representatives 
to the Authority and who serve at the will of the Governing Body.  The term of the 
Sheriff as a member of the Authority expires when his term as sheriff of the Member 
Jurisdiction expires.  As of March 2, 2020 and the date of this certificate, the duly 



2 
 

authorized and appointed members of the Authority Board appointed by the Member 
Jurisdiction were and are Sheriff Dye, Oris Christian, and Tim Lovelace. 

 
6. Katie Patton, Esquire is the duly appointed, qualified, and serving County Attorney. 

 
7. Lonzo Lester is the County Administrator and the duly appointed, qualified, and 

serving Clerk of the Governing Body. 
 

8. No resolution or ordinance of the Governing Body has been adopted requesting or 
authorizing the withdrawal of the Member Jurisdiction from the Authority. 

 
9. A meeting of the Governing Body was held on February 3, 2003, at which meeting 

the following duly elected members were present and absent: 
 

 PRESENT: Frank W. Horton 
   Clarence Ball 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples 
   D. Carter McGlothlin 
   Danny L. Brown 

 
  ABSENT: None 
 
  being all of the members of the Governing Body on the date of such meeting. 
 

10. A resolution (the “Service Agreement Resolution”) authorizing the Member 
Jurisdiction to enter into a Service Agreement among the Authority, the Member 
Jurisdiction, and the other eight members of the Authority, dated as of April 1, 2003 
(the “Original Service Agreement”) was adopted by a majority of the members of 
the Governing Body by the following roll call vote, as recorded in the minutes of such 
meeting as follows: 

 
 AYES: Frank W. Horton 
   Danny L. Brown 
   Clarence Ball 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples 
   D. Carter McGlothlin 

 
  NAYS: None 
 

11. Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true, complete, and correct copy of such Service 
Agreement Resolution as recorded in the Minutes of such meeting. 

 



3 
 

12. A meeting of the Governing Body was held on May 2, 2005, at which meeting the 
following duly elected members were present and absent: 

 
 PRESENT: Mike Puckett 
   Bill Wampler 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples 
   D. Carter McGlothlin 
   Danny L. Brown 

 
  ABSENT: None 

 
  being all of the members of the Governing Body on the date of such meeting. 
 

13. A resolution (the “Amendment Resolution”) authorizing the Member Jurisdiction to 
enter into an Amended Service Agreement among the Authority, the Member 
Jurisdiction, and the other nine members of the Authority, dated as of July 1, 2005 
(the “Amended Service Agreement,” and, together with and amending the 
Original Service Agreement, the “Service Agreement”) was adopted by a majority 
of the members of the Governing Body by the following roll call vote, as recorded in 
the minutes of such meeting as follows: 

 
 AYES: Mike Puckett 
   Bill Wampler 
   Robert J. Keene 
   Ralph C. Maples 
   D. Carter McGlothlin 
   Danny L. Brown 
 

  NAYS: None 
 

14. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true, complete, and correct copy of such 
Amendment Resolution as recorded in the Minutes of such meeting. 

 
15. Such Service Agreement Resolution, as amended by the Amendment Resolution, has 

not been repealed, revoked, rescinded or amended but is in full force and effect on 
this date. 

 
16. A meeting of the Governing Body was held on March 2, 2020, at which meeting the 

following duly elected members were present and absent: 
 

  PRESENT: Tim Lovelace 
    Lou Wallace 
    Carl Rhea 
    David Eaton 
    Steve Breeding 



4 
 

    Rebecca Taylor Dye 
    Oris Christian 
 

ABSENT: None 
 
being all of the members of the Governing Body on the date of such meeting. 

 
17. A resolution (the “Support Agreement Resolution”) authorizing the Member 

Jurisdiction to enter into an Amended and Restated Support Agreement among the 
Authority, the Member Jurisdiction, and the Virginia Resources Authority (“VRA”), 
dated as of June 1, 2020 (the “VRA Support Agreement”) was adopted by a 
majority of the members of the Governing Body by the following roll call vote, as 
recorded in the minutes of such meeting as follows: 

 
  AYES: Tim Lovelace 
    Lou Wallace 
    Carl Rhea 
    David Eaton 
    Steve Breeding 
    Rebecca Taylor Dye 
    Oris Christian 
 
  NAYS: None 
 

18. Attached hereto as Exhibit D is a true, complete, and correct copy of such Support 
Agreement Resolution as recorded in the Minutes of such meeting. 

 
19. Such Support Agreement Resolution has not been repealed, revoked, rescinded, or 

amended but is in full force and effect on this date. 
 

20. The Service Agreement and the Support Agreement have each been duly executed 
and delivered by the Member Jurisdiction.  The Member Jurisdiction is not in default 
in its obligations under the Service Agreement or the Support Agreement.  A copy of 
the Service Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit E and a copy of the VRA 
Support Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit F. 

 
21. No litigation or administrative action of any kind is currently pending or threatened to 

(a) restrain or enjoin the execution and delivery of the Service Agreement or the 
Support Agreement (together, the “Agreements”), (b) in any way contest or 
challenge the due adoption of the Authorizing Resolution, the Service Agreement 
Resolution, the Amendment Resolution or the Support Agreement Resolution or (c) 
question the title of the officers of the Member Jurisdiction to their respective offices 
or the officers who executed the Service Agreement or who are executing the Support 
Agreement.   

 



5 
 

22. The authorization, execution, and delivery of the Agreements and the compliance 
with the provisions thereof, are within the corporate powers of the Governing Body 
and do not and will not conflict with or constitute a violation of, breach of, or default 
under (i) any federal or Virginia constitutional provision or any other provision of 
Virginia law, (ii) any agreement or other instrument to which the Governing Body is 
a party or by which the Governing Body is bound, or (iii) to the best of my 
knowledge after due investigation, any order, rule or regulation of any court or 
governmental agency or body having jurisdiction over the Governing Body or any of 
its properties. 

 
23. There have been obtained all consents, approvals, authorizations, and orders of 

governmental or regulatory authorities, if any, which are required to be obtained by 
the Member Jurisdiction as conditions precedent to the execution, delivery, and 
performance of the Member Jurisdiction’s obligations under the Agreements. 



6 
 

 
 
Dated:  June ___, 2020. 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 
Name: Rebecca Dye 
Title:   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 
Name: Lonzo Lester 
Title:   County Administrator  





















































































 

 

 

Status Report: May 2020 
 

May 12, 2020 

In reference to the property sitting at the intersection of River rd and Red Oak Ridge Rd 
belonging to Josh Bradley. I spoke with Mr. Bradley by phone and he advised that he would get 
the property cleaned up. He advised that the previous renter had trashed the property. 

May 27, 2020 

I checked on the property of Mr. Bradley on todays date and progress had been made, I 
attempted to contact Mr. Bradley by phone today I left a message for him, to further discuss the 
property. 

 

May 26, 2020 

In reference to the property at 6780 Dante Rd, I have made attempts to make contact with the 
homeowners, but have been unsuccessful up to this point. A notice was posted on the door of 
the residence for the owners to get in contact with me as soon as possible. 

 

May 27, 2020  

In reference to a complaint of refrigerator doors being on the VDOT property on Upper Bear 
Wallow Rd I was unable to locate any doors. 

 

Deputy C Porter 

Russell County Sheriffs Office  

 

RUSSELL COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 

P.O. Box 338                                                                             Phone (276) 889-8033 
79 Rogers Avenue 
Lebanon, VA 24266              sheriff@russellcountyva.us           Fax: (276) 889-8203 

 
                                                        Steve Dye, Sheriff 
 


























































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 6/1/20     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Board Appointments.pdf
	Staff Recommendation:

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 6/1/20        6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 6/1/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	VRA 2020 - SWVRJA-Russell Support Agreement.pdf
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 6/1/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 6/1/20         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	Staff Recommendation:


